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First Bank of Delaware 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

  As of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008  
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

(unaudited) 

 
 

ASSETS: September 30, 2009      December 31, 2008

Cash and due from  banks  $                       1,818  $                           5,070 
Interest bearing deposits with banks                              429                                  509 
Federal funds sold                         23,728                               3,974 
Total cash and cash equivalents                         25,975                               9,553 

Investment securities available for sale, at fair value                            12,874                             22,631 
Restricted stocks, at cost                              475                                  139 
Loans receivable (net of allowance for loan losses of
     $3,923 and $2,935, respectively)                         80,905                             71,307 
Premises and equipment, net                           2,840                               3,430 
Other real estate owned                           1,049                                  293 
Accrued interest receivable                              391                                  248 
Bank owned life insurance                           1,846                               1,817 
Other assets                           5,365                               6,784 

Total Assets  $                   131,720  $                       116,202 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand – non-interest-bearing  $                     27,078  $                         35,984 
Demand – interest-bearing                              550                                    90 
Money market and savings                         30,212                             23,781 
Time under $100,000                         13,226                             11,627 
Time $100,000 or more                         16,372                                  808 
    Total Deposits                         87,438                             72,290 

Accrued interest payable                              129                                  175 
Accrued expenses                           1,771                               2,620 
Other liabilities                           1,257                               1,624 

Total Liabilities                         90,595                             76,709 
Shareholders’ Equity:
   Common stock par value: $0.05; shares authorized: 15,000,000
   Shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2009: 11,418,901
   Shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2008: 11,401,301                              571                                  570 
Additional paid in capital                         13,453                             13,371 
Retained earnings                         26,843                             25,659 
Stock held by deferred compensation plan                                 -                                   (384)
Accumulated other comprehensive income                              258                                  277 
Total Shareholders’ Equity                         41,125                             39,493 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  $                   131,720  $                       116,202 

(See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements)
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First Bank of Delaware 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
For the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 
(unaudited)         

 
(see notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements)

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

2009 2008 2009 2008
Interest income:
   Interest and fees on loans $2,382 $2,483 $6,616 $7,913 
   Interest and dividend income on federal      
       funds sold and other interest-earning balances      16 147                    31                  363 
   Interest and dividends on investment securities 159 120 558 539
   Total interest income 2,557 2,750 7,205 8,815

Interest expense:
   Demand - interest bearing                      2                      1                      6                      3 
   Money market and savings                    93                  129                  274                  500 
   Time less than $100,000                    98                    94                  301                  269 
   Time over $100,000                    40                    10                    60                  187 
   Other borrowed funds                       -                       -                      2                       - 
   Total interest expense                  233                  234                  643                  959 
Net interest income               2,324               2,516               6,562               7,856 
Provision for loan losses               1,125               1,000               3,400               3,050 
Net interest income after provision
     for loan losses               1,199               1,516               3,162               4,806 

Non-interest income:
    Loan advisory and servicing fees                      4                      8                    26                    61 
    Service fees on deposit accounts                    25                    28                    97                  180 
    Net gain on sales of loans                       -                  233                       -                  631 
    Consumer loan fee income                  525                  782               1,471               3,990 
    Cash management income                  133                    66                  297                  170 
    Credit and prepaid card products               1,659               2,349               5,625               8,239 
    Bank owned life isurance                      9                    15                    29                    47 
    Other income                    27                  156                    72                  530 
   Total non-interest income               2,382               3,637               7,617             13,848 
Non-interest expenses:
   Salaries and employee benefits               1,723               1,885               5,526               6,138 
   Occupancy                  147                  158                  479                  441 
   Depreciation                  102                  105                  324                  316 
   Legal                    97                    89                  195                  268 
   Professional fees                  110                  384                  389                  723 
   Data processing and operational expense                  115                  128                  367                  389 
   Credit card program marketing expense                       -                       -                       -                  596 
   Credit card program processing expense                    38                  136                  218                  673 
   FDIC Assessment                    36                    23                  122                    52 
   Delaware franchise tax                    19                    76                    57                  374 
   Other operating expenses                  467                  722               1,311               1,565 
   Total non-interest expense               2,854               3,706               8,988             11,535 

Income before income taxes                  727               1,447               1,791               7,119 
Provision for income taxes                  244                  522                  607               2,556 

Net Income $483 $925 $1,184 $4,563 

Earnings per share:

Basic $0.04 $0.08 $0.10 $0.40     
Diluted $0.04 $0.08 $0.10 $0.40 

September 30,September 30,
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FIRST BANK OF DELAWARE 

 STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 For the nine months ended  September 30, 2009 and 2008 

 (Dollars in thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

 

  
 

Comprehensive 
Income 

  
 

Commo
n 

Stock 

  
Additional 

Paid in 
Capital 

  
 

Retained 
Earnings 

Stock Held by 
Deferred 

Compensation 
Plan 

 Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

  
Total 

Shareholders
’ 

Equity 

 

        
        
Balance January 1, 2009................................  $       570   $       

13,371
 $    25,659    $             (384)  $                   277 $        39,493 

Options exercised (17,600 shares)             1                           13              –                            –                    14 
Share Based Compensation              –                 69             –             –                          –                    69 
Deferred compensation stock 
   distributions 
Total other comprehensive loss, 
net of  taxes of $16 ................................

    
 
    
  $               
(19)         

 

–

 

–

 

–

384 

–

 
 

(19)

 
384

(19)

 

Net income  ................................................... 1,184 – – 1,184 – – 1,184 
Total comprehensive income ......................$              1,165 – – – – – – 
                Balance September 30, 2009  $       571 $       13,453 $   26,843   $                    -  $                   258 $        41,125 
         

  
 

  
 

Comprehensive 
Income 

  
 

Commo
n 

Stock 

  
Additional 

Paid in 
Capital 

  
 

Retained 
Earnings 

Stock Held by 
Deferred 

Compensation 
Plan 

 Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income  

  
Total 

Shareholders
’ 

Equity 

 

        
        
Balance January 1, 2008................................  $       569  $       

13,284
 $    20,604    $             (384)  $                    87 $        34,160 

Options exercised (24,200 shares)               1               33              –                            –                    34 
Share Based Compensation              –                 57             –             –                          –                    57 
 
Total other comprehensive loss, 
net of taxes of $13 ................................   $               

(24)         

 

–

 

–

 

– –

 
 

(24)

 

(24)

 

Net income  ................................................... 4,563 – – 4,563 – – 4,563 
Total comprehensive income ......................$             4,539 – – – – – – 
                Balance September 30, 2008  $       570 $        

13,374
 $   25,167   $             (384)  $                   63 $        38,790 

          
(See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements) 
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(See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements) 
 
 

First Bank of Delaware

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009 and 2008

(Dollars in thousands)
(unaudited)

2009 2008
Cash flows from  operating activities:

Net income 1,184$            4,563$            
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
   cash provided by operating activities: 

Provision for loan losses 3,400               3,050               
Loss on sale of other real estate owned -                   7                       
Stock compensation expense 69                     57                     
Deferred compensation stock distribution 384                  -                   
Depreciation 324                  316                  
Amortization of discount on investment securities (36)                   (2)                     
Net gain on sale of loans -                   (631)                
Increase in value of bank owned life insurance (29)                   (47)                   
Decrease in accrued interest receivable and other assets 1,293               (1,913)             
Decrease in due to consumer loan servicers 
  and purchasers -                   (84)                   
(Decrease) increase  in accrued interest payable, accrued expenses
   and other liabilities (1,262)             1,315               

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,327               6,631               
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of securities:
Available for sale (933)                -                   
FHLB Stock purchase (336)                (37)                   

Proceeds from principal receipts, calls and maturities of securities:
Available for sale 10,690            9,330               

Gross loans originated for sale -                   (52,380)           
Proceeds from sales of loans -                   52,560            
Net (increase) decrease in loans (13,833)           2,467               
Purchases of premises and equipment (151)                (245)                
Net proceeds from  sale of other real estate owned 79                     11                     
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 417                  -                   
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (4,067)             11,706            

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from the exercise of stock options 14                     34                     
Net (decrease) increase in demand, money market and savings deposits (2,015)             5,524               
Net increase (decrease) in time deposits 17,163            (6,280)             
Net cash provided by (used in)financing activities 15,162            (722)                

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 16,422            17,615            
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 9,553               15,992            
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 25,975$          33,607$          
Supplemental disclosure:

Interest paid 689$                1,224$            
Taxes paid 900$                2,600$            

Non-monetary transfers into OREO 756$                293$                

Nine months ended

September 30,



 - 8 - 

 
 

FIRST BANK OF DELAWARE 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

 
Note 1: Organization 

  
First Bank of Delaware, referred to as “we,” “FBD,” the “Bank” or the “Company,” is a commercial 

bank chartered pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware, which commenced operations in June 1999.  
Our principal office is located at Brandywine Commons II, 1000 Rocky Run Parkway, Wilmington, 
Delaware, and our telephone number is (302) 529-5984.  As a Delaware chartered bank, we are subject to 
the regulation and examination of the Office of the State Bank Commissioner of the State of Delaware.  As a 
state chartered bank which is not a member of the Federal Reserve System, we are also subject to 
examination and comprehensive regulation by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).  The 
deposits which are held by us are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC.  
We operate a traditional community banking business, as well as a consumer products division from which 
we derive a majority of our net income.  We have also engaged in mezzanine financing, but discontinued 
those operations during 2008. 

We presently conduct our principal community banking activities through our two offices in 
Wilmington, Delaware. We offer a variety of credit and depository banking services. Our commercial loan 
services are primarily offered to individuals and businesses in the Delaware area through two offices in New 
Castle County, Delaware. 

Our consumer products division is comprised of two business segments, consumer loans and card 
products. We make consumer installment loans nationally via the Internet and telephone.  Credit and prepaid 
card products are similarly offered nationally.  The majority of loan balances and credit card receivables 
resulting from these products are sold without recourse. From the time we introduced our consumer products 
until 2008, we primarily relied on third parties to market and service these loans and cards.  As a result of a 
consent order which we entered into with the FDIC in October 2008, we have reduced our reliance on third 
parties and made significant changes in our consumer products division. We have terminated most of the 
third party relationships through which such loans and cards were marketed and serviced, and have begun 
offering these products directly with assistance from professional marketers and service providers. 

Our consumer products division offers consumer loans and card products primarily to customers with 
special credit needs who have been underserved by traditional lending institutions. We have previously 
described the business segments and customers of our consumer products division as “subprime”. While a 
typical customer of our consumer products division may have a weakened credit history or reduced 
repayment capacity, there is no universally accepted definition of “subprime” and we believe that the use of 
the term creates confusion with the subprime mortgage crisis that began in 2007. We have not made 
subprime mortgage loans, either through our consumer products division or our community banking 
business. Accordingly, we have discontinued our use of the term “subprime”. This change, however, should 
not be interpreted as reflecting any change in credit characteristics of our customers, or the business of our  
consumer products division.     

FBD encounters vigorous competition for market share from bank holding companies, national and 
regional banks and other community banks, thrift institutions and other non-bank financial organizations, 
such as mutual fund companies, insurance companies and brokerage companies. 
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FBD is subject to regulations of certain state and federal agencies. These regulatory agencies 
periodically examine FBD for adherence to laws and regulations. This regulatory framework contributes to 
our cost of doing business, and any changes in applicable laws or regulations, or the results of any 
examination could result in additional cost or otherwise adversely effect our operations 

 
 
 

Note 2:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 
    

Basis of Presentation: 

The Company follows accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). 
The FASB sets generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) that are followed to ensure consistent 
reporting of financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. Over time, the FASB and other GAAP-
setting bodies have issued standards in the form of FASB Statements. Interpretations, Staff Positions, EITF 
Abstracts, AICPA Statements of Position, and Practice Bulletins. The FASB recognized the complexity of its 
standard setting process and embarked on a revised process in 2004 that culminated in the release of the 
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) on July 1, 2009. The ASC does not change how the 
Company accounts for its transactions or the nature of related disclosures made, nor does it impact the 
Company’s financial position or results of operations. It simply took thousands of individual pronouncements 
that comprise GAAP and reorganized them under accounting topics using a consistent structure. References 
to GAAP in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q have been updated to refer to topics in the ASC. This 
change was made effective by the FASB for periods ending on or after September 15, 2009. 

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information and 
with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 8-03 of Regulation S-X.  Accordingly, they do not include all of 
the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial 
statements.  In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) 
considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.  Operating results for the three and nine 
month periods ended September 30, 2009 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected 
for the year ending December 31, 2009. 

Risks and Uncertainties and Certain Significant Estimates: 

Our business is subject to various risks including the following: 

Our earnings include significant amounts of consumer loan and credit card product fee income, as well as 
net interest income, which is the difference between interest earned on its interest-earning assets, such as 
loans and investments, and the interest paid on its interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. 
Accordingly, our results of operations are subject to risks and uncertainties surrounding our exposure to 
changes in the interest rate environment. For example prepayments on fixed rate loans and mortgage-backed 
securities vary significantly and may cause significant fluctuations in our net interest margin. Our results of 
operations will be significantly affected by the ability of borrowers to repay their loans and many consumer 
borrowers, including consumer installment loan customers and credit card customers, are considered to be 
high credit risks.  Further, litigation in connection with such consumer loans and card products, if successful, 
and if not reimbursed by loan servicers and card marketers obligated to indemnify FBD, could have an 
adverse impact on earnings and financial condition. 

Interest rate risk has been maintained at relatively modest levels. The commercial loan portfolio is 
comprised primarily of either variable rate loans or of fixed rate loans which generally have repricing periods 
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of five years or less. Consumer loans generally have terms of two years or less. Only modest amounts of long 
term mortgage backed securities (approximately $7.9 million), are owned, further limiting interest rate risk. 
While there is higher prepayment risk on these longer term securities, the amount is limited to the $7.9 
million of mortgage backed securities owned as of September 30, 2009.  

The primary marketer for our credit cards generated credit card products which resulted in revenues 
greater than 10% of total revenues. In third quarter 2009, revenues totaled $1.4 million, which represented 
28.1% of total revenues of $4.9 million. In third quarter 2008, that company marketed credit cards which 
generated $933,000, which represented 14.6% of total revenues of $6.4 million. In the first nine months of 
2009 revenues totaled $4.3 million or 29.0% of total revenues of $14.8 million compared to $4.0 million or 
17.5% of  revenues totaling $22.7 million in 2008. That marketer is currently the Bank’s sole credit card 
marketer. In September of 2009, it was decided, by the Bank and its marketer, that the accounts related to 
this marketer would be closed to new purchases. These accounts will be transferred to the marketer at par 
and the Bank will no longer own the accounts. This will have a material adverse effect on earnings. 

 Our consumer loans generally have principal amounts of $2,500 or less with terms of up to 24 months. 
Legislation eliminating or limiting interest rates upon such loans and upon credit cards has from time to time 
been proposed.  

 
We generate substantial fee income after we sell or participate loans and credit card balances at par to 

various purchasers, based on the amounts of such balances or on the number of accounts outstanding. Should 
purchasers be unable to acquire funding, sales might be curtailed or eliminated with a material reduction in 
income. 

On October 9, 2008, the Bank entered into a cease and desist stipulation and consent order with the 
Bank’s primary federal regulator, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), as discussed in our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and in Part II, Item 1 of this report.  
 
 As of the date of this report, we are in discussions with Visa, Mastercard and certain third parties 
with whom we have a relationship relative to our card products, relating to an account compromise event 
involving a third party merchant acquirer. As a member of Visa and Mastercard, we may be responsible for 
amounts relating to this event. We have received the actual loss amount from VISA for the actual fraud 
losses and other costs. This amount totals $1.4 million. We are seeking reimbursement of this amount from 
third parties and insurance. We have not recorded any amounts for this claim as of September 30, 2009.  
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 Significant estimates are made by management in determining the allowance for loan losses, carrying 
values of other real estate owned, other than temporary impairment of investment securities and restricted 
stock and the realization of deferred tax assets. Consideration is given to a variety of factors in establishing 
these estimates.  

 Restricted stock, which represents required investment in the common stock of correspondent banks, is 
carried at cost and as of September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, consists of the common stock of the 
FHLB of Pittsburgh and Atlantic Central Bankers Bank. In December 2008, the FHLB of Pittsburgh notified 
member banks that it was suspending dividend payments and the repurchase of capital stock.  
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Management’s determination of whether these investments are impaired is based on their assessment of 
the ultimate recoverability of their cost rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value.  The 
determination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability of their cost is influenced by criteria 
such as (1) the significance of the decline in net assets of the FHLB as compared to the capital stock amount 
for the FHLB and the length of time this situation has persisted, (2) commitments by the FHLB to make 
payments required by law or regulation and the level of such payments in relation to the operating 
performance of the FHLB, and (3) the impact of legislative and regulatory changes on institutions and, 
accordingly, on the customer base of the FHLB. 

Management believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the restricted stock as of September 
30, 2009. 

In estimating the allowance for loan losses, management considers current economic conditions, 
diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency statistics, results of internal loan reviews, borrowers’ 
perceived financial and managerial strengths, the adequacy of underlying collateral, if collateral dependent, or 
present value of future cash flows and other relevant factors. Since these estimates are dependent, to a great 
extent, on the general economy and other conditions that may be beyond FBD’s control, it is at least 
reasonably possible that the estimates could differ materially in the near term.  

 In estimating other than temporary impairment of investment securities, securities are evaluated on at 
least a quarterly basis, and more frequently when market conditions warrant such an evaluation, to determine 
whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary.  To determine whether a loss in value is other-than-
temporary, management utilizes criteria such as the reasons underlying the decline, the magnitude and 
duration of the decline and the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the security for a 
period of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery in the fair value.  The term “other-than-
temporary” is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the prospects for a 
near-term recovery of value is not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support a 
realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value of investment.  Once a decline in value is 
determined to be other-than-temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to 
earnings is recognized.  

 In evaluating our ability to recover deferred tax assets, management considers all available positive and 
negative evidence, including our past operating results and our forecast of future taxable income.  In 
determining future taxable income, management makes assumptions for the amount of taxable income, the 
reversal of temporary differences and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies.  
These assumptions require us to make judgments about our future taxable income and are consistent with the 
plans and estimates we use to manage our business.  Any reduction in estimated future taxable income may 
require us to record a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets.  An increase in the valuation 
allowance would result in additional income tax expense in the period and could have a significant impact on 
our future earnings.    

In estimating the value of other real estate owned, management considers the information available to 
determine net realizable value. However, the actual net realizable value is not known until the disposition of 
the property. 

We are subject to federal and state regulations governing virtually all aspects of our activities, including, 
but not limited to, lines of business, liquidity, investments, the payment of dividends and others. Such 
regulations and the cost of adherence to such regulations can have a significant impact on earnings and 
financial conditions. Recent legislation, including the Credit Card Accountability, Responsibility and 
Disclosure (CARD) Act of 2009, and proposals for new legislation, including bills introduced in the U.S. 
House of Representatives and Senate, which propose the creation of a “Consumer Financial Protection 
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Agency”, could significantly alter the regulatory framework on which we operate, and reduce the profitability 
of products we currently offer or which we plan to offer.  

 
 
 

Stock Based Compensation: 
 
The Company maintains a Stock Option Plan and Restricted Stock Plan (the “Plan”) under which the 

Company grants options to its employees, directors and independent contractors and consultants who 
perform services for the Company.  Under terms of the plan, 1.5 million shares of common stock are reserved 
for awards under the Plan.  The Plan provides that the exercise price of each option granted equals the 
market price of the Company’s stock on the date of grant.  Any options granted vest within one to five years 
and have a maximum term of 10 years.  

 
A summary of the activity related to the Company’s stock options granted under the Plan during the nine 

months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 is presented below: 
 

 For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 
 2009  2008 
  

 
 

Shares 

 Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

  
 
 

Shares 

 Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

Outstanding, beginning of year 905,251
 

$  2.54
 

1,029,988
 

$  2.49
 Granted      108,000                        1.33       59,000                        2.76
 Exercised       (17,600)                 0.78       (24,200)                 1.38
 Forfeited   (60,375)  2.57    (236,686)  2.66
Outstanding, end of period 935,276 2.43  828,102 2.64
   Options exercisable at period-end 556,276 2.61  632,102 2.54
   Weighted average fair value of 
options granted during the period 

 
$ 0.66

 
$ 0.94

     
 For the Nine Months Ended 

 September 30, 
 2009  2008 

Number of options exercised    17,600     24,200  
Cash received $ 13,728  $ 33,495  
Intrinsic value    20,944     20,928  
Tax benefit      7,121       7,325  
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The following table summarizes information about options outstanding under the Plan as of September 

30, 2009. 
   
 Options outstanding   Options exercisable  
 
 

Range of Exercise Prices 

 
 
 
 

Shares 

 Weighted 
Average 

remaining 
contractual 
life (years) 

  
Weighted 
Average 
exercise 

price 

    
 
 
 

Shares 

  
Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

 

          
$1.01 to $1.50 111,850  9.0  $  1.33  3,850  $  1.20  

              $1.51  to $1.99 102,700  8.9  1.65  2,700  1.64  
$2.00  to $2.69 218,826  5.0  2.50  218,826  2.50  
$2.70 to $3.10     501,900  6.2  2.80  330,900  2.71  

 935,276  $  2.43  556,276 $  2.61 
        

During the three months ended September 30, 2009, $23,000 was recognized in compensation expense, 
with a 34% assumed tax benefit, for the Plan. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, $69,000 
was recognized in compensation expense, with a 34% assumed tax benefit, for the Plan. During the three 
months ended September 30, 2008, $16,000 was recognized in compensation expense, with a 35% assumed 
tax benefit, for the Plan. During the nine months ended September 30, 2008, $57,000 was recognized in 
compensation expense, with a 35% assumed tax benefit, for the Plan. The fair value of each option granted in 
2009 is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following 
weighted average assumptions used for those grants: dividend yield of 0%; expected volatility of 45.52%; 
risk-free interest rate of 1.99% and an expected life of 7.0 years. At September 30, 2009, there were 379,000 
unvested options with a fair value of $329,000 with $175,000 of that amount remaining to be recognized as 
expense. At that date, the intrinsic value (the excess  of the market price over the exercise price) of the 
935,276 options outstanding was $19,015, while the intrinsic value of the 556,276 exercisable (vested) 
options was $1,155. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009,  60,375 options were forfeited with 
a weighted average grant fair value of $154,873. 

 
 

 
Note 3:  Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an update to Accounting 
Standard Codification 105-10, “Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”. This standard establishes the 
FASB Accounting Standard Codification (“Codification” or “ASC”) as the source of authoritative U.S. 
GAAP recognized by the FASB for nongovernmental entities. The Codification is effective for interim and 
annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The Codification is a reorganization of existing U.S. GAAP 
and does not change existing U.S. GAAP.  We adopted this standard during the third quarter of 2009. The 
adoption had no impact on our financial position, results of operations, and earnings per share. 

 
In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-5, “Measuring 

Liabilities at Fair Value”, which updates ASC 821-10, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”. The 
updated guidance clarifies that the fair value of a liability can be measured in relation to the quoted price of 
the liability when it trades as an asset in an active market, without adjusting the price for restrictions that 
prevent the sale of the liability. This guidance is effective beginning October 1, 2009. We do not expect the 
adoption of this guidance to have an impact on our financial statements.  
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In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance impacting FASB ASC 860, Transfers and servicing 

(Statement No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement 
No. 140).  This codification prescribes the information that a reporting entity must provide in its financial 
reports about a transfer of financial assets; the effects of a transfer on its financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows; and a transferor’s continuing involvement in transferred financial assets.  
Specifically, among other aspects, ASC 860 amends Statement of Financial Standard No. 140, Accounting 
for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, or SFAS 140, by 
removing the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity from SFAS 140 and removes the exception from 
applying FIN 46(R) to variable interest entities that are qualifying special-purpose entities.  It also modifies 
the financial-components approach used in SFAS 140. ASC 860 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
November 15, 2009.  We have not determined the effect that the adoption of ASC 860 will have on our 
financial position or results of operations. 
 

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance impacting FASB ASC 810-10, Consolidation 
(Statement No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R).  The new guidance amends tests for 
variable interest entities to determine whether a variable interest entity must be consolidated. FASB ASC 
810-10 requires an entity to perform an analysis to determine whether an entity’s variable interest or interests 
give it a controlling financial interest in a variable interest entity. This standard requires ongoing 
reassessments of whether an entity is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity and enhanced 
disclosures that provide more transparent information about an entity’s involvement with a variable interest 
entity. The new guidance will become effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009.  We have 
not determined the effect that the adoption of ASC 810-10 will have on our financial position or results of 
operations.  
 
 

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105-10, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(Statetment No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles). The new guidance replaces SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles, to establish the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the source of 
authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United 
States.  The new guidance became effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. 
The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our financial position or results of operations.  
 

In April 2009, the FASB issued new guidance impacting FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements 
and Disclosures (FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FAS 157-4, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and 
Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That 
Are Not Orderly (FSP FAS 157-4)).  FASB ASC 820, defines fair value as the price that would be received 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability in an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed 
sale) between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions. FASB ASC 820 
provides additional guidance on determining when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability 
has significantly decreased. The FSP also includes guidance on identifying circumstances when a transaction 
may not be considered orderly. 
 
FASB ASC 820 provides a list of factors that a reporting entity should evaluate to determine whether there 
has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability in relation to normal 
market activity for the asset or liability. When the reporting entity concludes there has been a significant 
decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, further analysis of the information from 
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that market is needed and significant adjustments to the related prices may be necessary to estimate fair value 
in accordance with Statement 157. 
 
This ASC clarifies that when there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the 
asset or liability, some transactions may not be orderly. In those situations, the entity must evaluate the 
weight of the evidence to determine whether the transaction is orderly. The FSP provides a list of 
circumstances that may indicate that a transaction is not orderly. A transaction price that is not associated 
with an orderly transaction is given little, if any, weight when estimating fair value. 
 
This ASC is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early 
adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009.  We adopted this pronouncement in second 
quarter 2009 and it had no impact on our financial statements. 
 
 
 
 

Note 4: Segment Reporting 

Our reportable segments represent strategic businesses that offer different products and services. The 
segments are managed separately because each segment has unique operating characteristics, management 
requirements and marketing strategies. We have three reportable segments: community banking; consumer 
loans (formerly “subprime consumer loans”); and card products (formerly “subprime card products”). As a 
result of market conditions, the Bank made a strategic decision to discontinue its mezzanine finance business 
effective July 1, 2008. In the following table for 2008, the mezzanine segment has been reclassified to the 
community banking segment. The community banking segment is primarily comprised of the results of 
operations and financial condition of commercial loan, electronic payments products and deposit operations. 
We additionally offer consumer products to the underbanked consumer including consumer installment loans 
and credit cards. Consumer loans are loans with principal amounts of $2,500 or less and terms of 120 days to 
24 months. These loans typically are made in states that are outside of Delaware via the internet through a 
small number of marketers with rates and fees significantly different from other loan products offered. We 
perform underwriting, customer service and collection functions ourselves, or through directly contracted 
third parties.  We also offer card products, which consist of prepaid and credit cards, on a national basis 
through a small number of marketers. The majority of these installment loans and credit card receivables are 
sold or participated. As a result of discussions with the FDIC, most third party relationships involved in 
generating these loans and credit cards have been terminated, which materially has reduced and continues to 
reduce revenues. The headings for the unsecured consumer loan and credit card segments were changed to 
avoid confusion with subprime mortgage loans, which the Bank has never made. The credit characteristics of 
consumer loan and card borrowers may include weakened credit histories that include payment delinquencies 
and possibly more severe problems such as charge-offs, judgments, and bankruptcies. They may also display 
reduced repayment capacity as measured by credit scores, debt-to-income ratios, or other criteria that may 
encompass borrowers with incomplete credit histories. 

 We evaluate the performance of the community banking segment based upon net income, return on 
equity and return on average assets. Consumer installment loans and card products are evaluated based 
upon net income.  
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Segment information for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, is as follows: 

(dollars in thousands)

Community Card Consumer
Banking Products Loans Total

Net interest income 935$          13$           1,376$       2,324$         
Provision for loan losses 350            225           550            1,125           
Non-interest income 198            1,659        525            2,382           
Non-interest expenses 883            948           1,023         2,854           
Provision(benefit) for income taxes (45)             175           114            244              

Net income (loss) (55)$           324$         214$          483$            

(dollars in thousands)

Community Card Consumer
Banking Products Loans Total

Net interest income 2,809$       22$           3,731$       6,562$         
Provision for loan losses 1,425         550           1,425         3,400           
Non-interest income 521            5,624        1,472         7,617           
Non-interest expenses 2,582         3,191        3,215         8,988           
Provision(benefit) for income taxes (240)           653           194            607              

Net income (loss) (437)$         1,252$      369$          1,184$         

Selected Balance Sheet Accounts at September 30, 2009:

Total assets 117,552$   11,456$    2,712$       131,720$     
Total loans 77,599       272           3,034         80,905         
Total deposits 75,631       10,162      1,645         87,438         

As of and for the three months ended September 30,  2009

As of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2009
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(dollars in thousands)

Community Card Consumer
Banking Products Loans Total

Net interest income 973$          100$          1,443$       2,516$          
Provision for loan losses 100            670            230            1,000            
Non-interest income 273            2,349         1,015         3,637            
Non-interest expenses 841            1,825         1,040         3,706            
Provision(benefit) for income taxes 110            (16)             428            522               
Net income (loss) 195$          (30)$           760$          925$             

(dollars in thousands)

Community Card Consumer
Banking Products Loans Total

Net interest income 3,220$       250$          4,386$       7,856$          
Provision for loan losses 244            1,569         1,237         3,050            
Non-interest income 989            8,238         4,621         13,848          
Non-interest expenses 2,640         5,587         3,308         11,535          
Provision for income taxes 477            480            1,599         2,556            
Net income 848$          852$          2,863$       4,563$          

Selected Balance Sheet Accounts at December 31, 2008:

Total assets 83,323$     29,349$     3,530$       116,202$      
Total loans 67,849       768            2,690         71,307          
Total deposits 47,528       24,509       253            72,290          

As of and for the three months ended September 30, 2008

As of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2008
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Note 5:      Earnings Per Share: 
Earnings per share (“EPS”) consists of two separate components: basic EPS and diluted EPS. Basic EPS 

is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for each 
period presented. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding plus dilutive common stock equivalents (“CSEs”). CSEs consist of dilutive stock 
options granted through FBD’s stock option plan. The following table is a reconciliation of the numerator 
and denominator used in calculating basic and diluted EPS. CSEs which are anti-dilutive are not included in 
the following calculation.  At September 30, 2009 there were 823,426 options which were antidilutive and 
therefore excluded from the calculation. At September 30, 2008, there were 795,152 options which were 
antidilutive due to the option exercise price being greater than the average market price for the period. 

The following table is a comparison of EPS for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, and 
2008.  
 
        
    
 Three months ended September 30, 
        2009 2008 
      
Net Income   $483,000    $925,000  

  Per  Per 
 Shares Share Shares Share 
Weighted average shares      
For period 11,418,901  11,393,577  
Basic EPS  $0.04  $0.08 
Add common stock equivalents 
representing dilutive stock options  - 

  
13,233 

 

Effect on basic EPS of dilutive CSE     -     - 
Equals total weighted average      
shares and CSE (diluted) 11,418,901  11,406,810  
Diluted EPS  $0.04  $0.08 
 
  
 Nine months ended September 30, 
        2009 2008 
      
Net Income $1,184,000    $4,563,000  

  Per  Per 
 Shares Share Shares Share 
Weighted average shares      
For period 11,412,132  11,387,543  
Basic EPS  $0.10  $0.40 
Add common stock equivalents 
representing dilutive stock options  5,107 

  
27,516 

 

Effect on basic EPS of dilutive CSE     -     - 
Equals total weighted average      
shares and CSE (diluted) 11,417,239  11,415,059  
Diluted EPS  $0.10  $0.40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 - 19 - 

 
Note 6:  Comprehensive Income: 
      The following table displays net income and the components of other comprehensive income to arrive at 
total comprehensive income. The only component of other comprehensive income is that related to the 
unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale investment securities.  

       

(dollar amounts in thousands):  Three months ended 
September 30, 

 Nine months ended 
September 30, 

  2009  2008  2009  2008 
Net income   $     483    $     925   $      1,184   $   4,563 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:         

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities: 
    Unrealized holding gains (losses) during the period 

 
         32           18              (35)          (37) 

    Tax effect on unrealized holding (gains) and losses           (11)            (6)              16           13 
Comprehensive income   $     504  $     937  $      1,165  $  4,539 
  504                
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Note 7:      Fair Value of Financial Instruments: 

    Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of our financial instruments; however, 
there are inherent weaknesses in any estimation technique.  Therefore, for substantially all financial 
instruments, the fair value estimates herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could 
have realized in a sales transaction on the dates indicated.  The estimated fair value amounts have been 
measured as of their respective period ends and have not been re-evaluated or updated for purposes of these 
financial statements subsequent to those respective dates.  As such, the estimated fair values of these financial 
instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different than the amounts reported at each 
year-end.  

FBD follows the guidance issued under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which 
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, and identifies required 
disclosures on fair value measurements. 

ASC 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820-10 are described below: 

 
 Basis of Fair Value Measurement: 

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for 
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities; 
Level 2 – Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable, either directly or 
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability; 
Level 3 – Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value 
measurement and observable (i.e., supported by little or no market activity). 

 
A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement. 
 
The Bank’s cash instruments are generally classified within level 1 or level 2 of the fair value hierarchy 

because they are valued using quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing 
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. 

 
The types of instruments valued based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, broker or dealer 

quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of transparency for securities which the Bank 
owns may include investment-grade bonds and mortgage products. Such instruments are generally classified 
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.  

 
Level 3 is for positions that are not traded in active markets or are subject to transfer restrictions, with 

valuations adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, based on available market evidence. In the 
absence of such evidence, management’s best estimate is used. Subsequent to inception, management only 
changes level 3 inputs and assumptions when corroborated by evidence such as transactions in similar 
instruments, completed or pending third-party transactions in the underlying investment or comparable 
entities, subsequent rounds of financing, recapitalizations and other transactions across the capital structure, 
offerings in the equity or debt markets, and changes in financial ratios or cash flows. The Bank does not have 
any such securities at present. 
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For assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair 
value hierarchy used at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 are as follows: 

Description  

 

September 30, 
2009 

 (Level 1) 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical 
Assets 

 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

 

(Level 3) 
Significant 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

  
(In Thousands) 

 
Securities available for sale  $  12,874  $   -  $  12,874  $  - 
 

Description  

 

December 31, 
2008 

 (Level 1) 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical 
Assets 

 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

 

(Level 3) 
Significant 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

  
(In Thousands) 

 
Securities available for sale  $  22,631  $   -  $  22,631  $  - 
 

For assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair 
value hierarchy used at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 are as follows: 

 

Description  

 

September 30, 
2009 

 (Level 1) 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical 
Assets 

 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

 

(Level 3) 
Significant 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

  
(In Thousands) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Impaired loans  $      5,062  $      -  $      -  $       5,062 

Other real estate owned  $  1,049  $      -  $      -  $  1,049 
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Description  

 

December 31, 
2008 

 (Level 1) 
Quoted Prices 

in Active 
Markets for 

Identical 
Assets 

 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

 

(Level 3) 
Significant 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

  
(In Thousands) 

 

The recorded investment in loans which are impaired totaled $5.8 million at September 30, 2009 and $2.1 
million at December 31, 2008, and the amount of related valuation allowances was $786,000 and $1.0 
million respectively of those dates. 

Other real estate owned consists of assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure.  They are held 
for sale and are initially recorded at fair value at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis.   

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Carried at Cost): 

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents approximate those 
assets’ fair values.  

 
Investment Securities: 

The fair value of securities available for sale (carried at fair value) and held to maturity (carried at 
amortized cost) is determined by matrix pricing (Level 2), which is a mathematical technique used widely 
in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted market prices for the specific 
securities but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted prices.    Internal 
cash flow models using a present value formula that includes assumptions market participants would use 
along with indicative exit pricing obtained from broker/dealers (where available) were used to support 
fair values of certain Level 3 investments. The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices 
in active markets include all of the Company’s U.S. government and agency securities, municipal 
obligations and corporate bonds and trust preferred securities. Such instruments are generally classified 
within level 1 or level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. As required by ASC 820-10, the Bank does not adjust 
the quoted price for such instruments. 
 
The types of instruments valued based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, broker or dealer 
quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of transparency for securities which the 
bank owns may include investment- grade corporate bonds, municipal obligations, and trust preferred 
securities. Such instruments are generally classified within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.  
 
Level 3 is for positions that are not traded in active markets or are subject to transfer restrictions, and 
may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, with such adjustment generally based on 
available market evidence. In the absence of such evidence, management’s best estimate is used. 
Subsequent to inception, management only changes level 3 inputs and assumptions when corroborated by 
evidence such as transactions in similar instruments, completed or pending third-party transactions in the 
underlying investment or comparable entities, subsequent rounds of financing, recapitalizations and other 

Impaired loans  $ 1,080  $      -  $      -  $ 1,080 

Other real estate owned  $    293  $      -  $      -  $    293 
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transactions across the capital structure, offerings in the equity or debt markets, and changes in financial 
ratios or cash flows. The bank has never owned any Level 3 securities.  

 
Loans Receivable (Carried at Cost): 

The fair values of loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using market rates at the 
balance sheet date that reflect the credit and interest rate-risk inherent in the loans.  Projected future cash 
flows are calculated based upon contractual maturity or call dates, projected repayments and prepayments 
of principal.  Generally, for variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in 
credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values.   

Other Real Estate Owned (Generally Carried at Fair Value): 

These assets are included as Level 3 fair values, based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurements.   

Restricted Stock (Carried at Cost): 

The carrying amount of restricted stock approximates fair value, and considers the limited 
marketability of such securities.   

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable (Carried at Cost): 

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable approximates its fair 
value. 

    Bank Owned Life Insurance: 

The fair value of bank owned life insurance is based on the estimated realizable market value of the 
underlying investments and insurance reserves. 

Deposit Liabilities (Carried at Cost): 

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest checking, passbook 
savings and money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the 
reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts).  Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are 
estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered in the 
market on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.  

 
Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments (Disclosed at Cost): 

Fair values for the Company’s off-balance sheet financial instruments (lending commitments and 
letters of credit) are based on fees currently charged in the market to enter into similar agreements, taking 
into account, the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties’ credit standing.  

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments were as follows at September 30, 
2009 and December 31, 2008. 
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 September 30, 2009  December 31, 2008 

(Dollars in Thousands) Carrying 
Amount 

Fair     
Value 

 Carrying 
Amount 

Fair   
Value 

Balance Sheet Data: 
 Financial Assets: 
     Cash and cash equivalents ....................  $   25,975 $  25,975 $     9,553 $    9,553 
     Investment securities available for  sale      12,874     12,874      22,631     22,631 
     Restricted stock ...................................  475 475 139 139
     Loans receivable, net ...........................       80,905     82,266      71,307     71,147 
     Bank owned life insurance ...................         1,846       1,846        1,817       1,817 
     Accrued interest receivable ..................    391 391 248 248
 
 Financial Liabilities: 
      Deposits: 
          Demand, savings and money market  $    57,840 $  57,840 $    59,855 $  59,855 
          Time ...............................................        29,598     29,774       12,435     12,577 
          Accrued interest payable .................   129 129   175 175
 

Off Balance Sheet Financial Instruments: 
Commitments to extend credit $            - $        - $            - $         - 
Letters of credit    -   -     -  - 
  

 

Note 8:     Investment Securities: 
 

Investment securities available for sale as of September 30, 2009 are as follows: 
 

 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Amortized 
Cost 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Fair 
Value 

 
FHLB Discount Notes ................................ $     4,991 $              8 $          - $     4,999 
Mortgage Backed Securities .......................        7,492   383             -            7,875 
Total ........................................................... $   12,483 $          391 $          - $   12,874 
  

 
Investment securities available for sale as of December 31, 2008 are as follows: 

 
 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Amortized 
Cost 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Fair 
Value 

 
FHLB Discount Notes ................................  $   14,751 $          196 $          - $   14,947 
Mortgage Backed Securities .......................         7,453             231             -            7,684 
Total ...........................................................  $   22,204 $          427 $          - $   22,631 
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The maturity distribution of the amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities by 
contractual maturity at September 30, 2009, is as follows: 

 
 Available for Sale 

 
               (Dollars in thousands) 

Amortized  
Cost 

 Estimated
Fair Value 

  

Less than 1 year ................................
After 15 years ................................

$      4,991 
        7,492 

$      4,999 
        7,875 

Total ...........................................................$    12,483 $    12,874 
  

 
 
Note 9:     Subsequent Events: 
 
 
     Subsequent events were reviewed through November 13, 2009.   
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ITEM 2: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 

The following is management’s discussion and analysis of significant changes in FBD’s results of 
operations, financial condition and capital resources presented in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

Certain statements in this document may be considered to be “forward-looking statements” as that term is 
defined in the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, such as statements that include the 
words “may,” “believes,” “expect,” “estimate,” “project,” ‘anticipate,” “should,” “intend,” “probability,” 
“risk,” “target,” “objective” and similar expressions or variations on such expressions.  The forward-looking 
statements contained herein are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements.  For example, risks and uncertainties 
can arise with changes in:  general economic conditions, including their impact on capital expenditures; new 
service and product offerings by competitors and price pressures; and similar items.  Readers are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s analysis only as 
of the date hereof.  FBD undertakes no obligation to publicly revise or update these forward-looking 
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof, except as may be required by 
applicable law or regulations.  Readers should carefully review the risk factors described in other documents 
FBD files from time to time with the FDIC.  
 
 
Consumer Installment Loans 

Installment loans are fully amortizing unsecured loans of $2,500 or less with a term of up to 24 
months and have anywhere between 4 and 48 scheduled repayments. These loans are offered via the internet 
and telephone. Customers must have an active checking account, valid identification and a regular source of 
income. Customers must meet additional credit underwriting criteria which may include minimum FICO 
credit scores and debt to income thresholds. Upon approval, a customer is provided a loan agreement, which 
he or she signs, and the funds are then electronically deposited into the customer’s account.  Principal and 
interest payments are due at least monthly. Customers may repay their loans via ACH transactions from their 
bank account, by personal check or by money order. These loans carry an annual interest rate of 
approximately 87% to 334%. Loans that were previously offered had terms of up to 120 months, but we no 
longer make those loans and none are on our balance sheet.  

We derive our authority to charge these rates of interest on these loans from the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Act, which authorizes a state chartered, FDIC-insured bank to charge the highest interest rates 
allowed under the law of the state where the bank is located. As a Delaware state-chartered depository 
institution, the Bank is subject to the interest rate laws of the State of Delaware, which do not impose limits 
on the rate of interest Delaware banks may charge on these loans. 

Consumer installment loans were previously offered through unaffiliated third party marketers and 
servicers with whom we contracted and who own the internet sites at which the loans are marketed. We have 
terminated our arrangements with these servicers and now offer our products directly, and may utilize 
professional marketers to help us obtain customers. We perform underwriting, customer service and 
collection functions ourselves, or through directly contracted third parties.  We have developed an 
infrastructure, including oversight, to support the products, as a result of our consent order and discussions 
with the FDIC. 
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We sell the majority of our consumer loans or participations in these loans to third party investors and 
plan on continuing this practice. The credit characteristics of borrowers may include weakened credit 
histories that include payment delinquencies and possibly more severe problems such as charge-offs, 
judgements, and bankruptcies. They may also display reduced repayment capacity as measured by credit 
scores, debt-to-income ratios, or other criteria that may encompass borrowers with incomplete credit 
histories.  

We currently originate loans via the internet or by telephone, which are mostly sold or participated to 
third parties. These third party buyers are investors or investment groups familiar with the industry. These 
loans are sold or participated on a non-recourse basis and the investors bear the risk of loss for any defaults 
on these loans.  We retain a portion of the income on these sold loans, which is recorded as non-interest 
income.  We also retain some of the loans we originate and bear the risk of loss for any defaults on these 
loans.  Income on these retained loans is recorded as interest income.  Per our internal guidelines, we may 
hold up to 25% of our capital in these loans at any one time. At September 30, 2009, there were 
approximately $34.4 million of such loans outstanding of which $4.6 million was retained on the Bank’s 
books.  

Card Products 
 
 Prepaid Cards 

Through our membership with MasterCard International and Visa, we have become an issuing bank 
for prepaid cards.  In third quarter 2005, we began offering prepaid cards primarily to the un-banked and 
under-banked customer on a national basis.  Prepaid cards are cards that store information electronically on a 
magnetic stripe or computer chip and can be used to purchase goods or services.  Funds are loaded onto 
cards which can be used in a manner similar to some debit/ATM cards and in some instances are similar to a 
MasterCard or Visa credit card.  Prepaid cards are a substitute for cash, gift certificates and check 
payments.  Cards can be either personalized with a customer name, non-personalized, reloadable or non-
reloadable based on the type of card.  Cards are issued through the internet, corporations or directly to the 
consumer.  We have contracted with our card processors to provide front-end software platform 
functionality, cardholder support and card fulfillment.  The bank earns revenues on these cards through 
interchange, monthly fees and float on the card deposits. We ceased marketing cards through several 
processors in the third and fourth quarters of 2008. The impact on prepaid card revenue is expected to be 
minimal, as we launched our own prepaid card on October 5, 2009. 

Credit Card Products 
We are an issuing bank for certain credit card programs. The credit characteristics of borrowers may 

include weakened credit histories that include payment delinquencies and possibly more severe problems such 
as charge-offs, judgments, and bankruptcies. They may also display reduced repayment capacity as measured 
by credit scores, debt-to-income ratios, or other criteria that may encompass borrowers with incomplete 
credit histories.  

FBD originates credit card receivables and sells or participates the majority of such receivables into 
the secondary market without recourse. We previously offered our card products through various third 
parties, but have terminated all third party credit card programs as a result of our consent order and 
discussions with the FDIC. The credit card receivables are sold or participated on a non-recourse basis and 
the purchasers bear the risk of loss for any default on the receivables. FBD will close and transfer the 
accounts at par related to our credit card marketer in the fourth quarter of 2009. FBD will continue to 
service cardholders in certain terminated programs until the cards expire. Macroeconomic issues related to 
credit markets for loans to borrowers with weakened credit histories, could exacerbate related funding 
availability and costs. To the extent that these purchasers cannot obtain financing, or financing is limited, we 
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may have to reduce or cease originations. We earned a monthly fee for each active account, as well as a 
monthly management fee. In fourth quarter 2007, we began a test of our own credit card products, which we 
retain on the balance sheet and for which we retain all income, pay all expenses and bear the risk of loss. We 
terminated this test product in 2008.  At September 30, 2009 FBD had $663,000 of gross credit card 
receivables on its books related to two programs. In the fourth quarter of 2009, we sold the receivables 
related to the Banks directly marketed credit card program. These receivables totaling $463,000 were sold 
for their actual net book value after reserves and no gain or loss was recorded on the sales. We plan to sell 
the credit card receivables related to the second program totaling $200,000 and close the related accounts in 
the fourth quarter of 2009.  

 

Financial Condition: 
 
September 30, 2009, Compared to December  31, 2008 
 

Total assets increased $15.5 million to $131.7 million at September 30, 2009, versus $116.2 million at 
December 31, 2008. This increase reflected an $19.8 million increase in fed funds sold and in loan receivables 
of $9.6 million which were offset in part by decreases in investments of $9.8 million and due from banks of 
$3.3 million, between those respective dates.  
 
Loans: 

The loan portfolio represents FBD’s largest asset, and is its most significant source of interest income. 
Net loans increased $9.6 million, or 13.5%, to $80.9 million at September 30, 2009, versus $71.3 million at 
December 31, 2008. The increase in loans was primarily the result of our community banking segment 
repurchase of past loan participations, which were sold to other banks. This purchase will allow us to earn 
additional interest income. The loan portfolio consists of commercial real estate, construction and other 
commercial loans, as well as consumer installment loans and credit card receivables. Commercial real estate 
loans comprise the majority of the loan portfolio. Commercial real estate loans amounted to $58.6 million at 
September 30, 2009 compared to $50.7 million at December 31, 2008. Construction and land development 
loans amounted to $17.0 million and $12.6 million respectively, at those dates. The increase in both 
categories reflect the higher amounts of loans retained by FBD instead of being participated to other banks. 
As of September 30, 2009, there were $4.6 million of consumer loans and $663,000 of credit card 
receivables outstanding. At December 31, 2008, there were $4.0 million of consumer loans and $1.1 million 
of credit card receivables outstanding. 

 
Investment Securities: 
 

Investment securities available-for-sale are investments which may be sold in response to changing 
market and interest rate conditions and for liquidity and other purposes. The investment securities available-
for-sale consist primarily of U.S. Government agency issued mortgage backed securities. Available-for-sale 
securities totaled $12.9 million at September 30, 2009, a decrease of $9.8 million or 43.2%, from year-end 
2008. This decrease resulted primarily from $10 million in FHLB discount notes that matured between the 
periods and pay downs of  mortgage-backed securities, offset by a $970,000 government agency security 
purchased in July 2009. At September 30, 2009, and December 31, 2008, the portfolio had net unrealized 
gains of $391,000 and $427,000, respectively.  
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Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
 

Cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold comprise this category, which 
consists of FBD’s most liquid assets. The aggregate amount in these three categories increased by $16.4 
million to $26.0 million at September 30, 2009 from $9.6 million at December 31, 2008. Federal funds sold 
increased by $19.8 million between those respective dates, to $23.7 million at September 30, 2009, reflecting 
the maturity of short-term securities.   
 
Restricted Stock: 
 

FBD is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (”FHLB”) and, as such, had been 
required to maintain stock at FHLB in proportion to its outstanding FHLB advances, prior to the FHLB 
suspension of dividend payments in 2008. Since that suspension of dividend payments, the restricted stock 
has been frozen and not redeemed. Federal Home Loan Bank Stock holdings increased to $415,000 at 
September 30, 2009 from $139,000 at December 31, 2008. The increase was due to a short term borrowing 
in the first quarter of 2009. When the borrowings were repaid in the first quarter the stock was not redeemed 
in accordance with current Federal Home Loan Bank policy. 

 
During the second quarter of 2009, FBD purchased $60,000 of stock in Atlantic Central Bankers Bank 

(“ACBB”) as a support to our line of credit with ACBB. The stock totaled $60,000 at September 30, 2009 
and $0 at December 31, 2008. This amount is included in “Restricted Stock” on the balance sheet.  
 
Premise and Equipment: 
 

Premises and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation was $2.8 million at September 30, 2009 and 
$3.4 million at December 31, 2008, respectively. The decrease represented sales of assets at book value 
during the second quarter of 2009. 
 
 
Bank Owned Life Insurance: 
 

Bank owned life insurance amounted to $1.8 million at September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008. 
The income earned on these policies is reflected in non-interest income.  
 
Deposits: 
 

Deposits, which include non-interest and interest-bearing demand deposits, money market, savings and 
time deposits and brokered time deposits, represent the major sources of funding. Deposits are generally 
solicited from the Delaware market area through a variety of products to attract and retain customers, with a 
primary focus on multi-product relationships. We also obtain deposits from our card product customers. 
 

Total deposits increased by $15.1 million to $87.4 million at September 30, 2009, from $72.3 million at 
December 31, 2008. Average transaction account balances in the current quarter decreased $13.7 million or 
20.2% over the comparable prior year quarter. See “Analysis of Net Interest Income”.  
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The decrease reflected the impact of terminating third party relationships related to consumer loans and 
credit cards. Time deposits increased $17.2 million to $29.6 million at September 30, 2009, versus $12.4 
million at December 31, 2008 due primarily to $10 million in brokered time deposits issued in the second 
quarter 2009. The brokered deposits were utilized as they were less costly than local deposits.  

 
 

Other Liabilities: 
 
Other liabilities, including accrued interest payable and accrued expenses, decreased by $1.2 million or 

27.3% to $3.2 million at September 30, 2009 from $4.4 million at December 31, 2008. The decrease was 
primarily due to federal tax payments and deferred compensation plan distributions of $384,000 in 2009.  
 
 
Shareholders’ Equity: 
 

Total shareholders’ equity increased $1.6 million to $41.1 million at September 30, 2009, versus $39.5 
million at December 31, 2008. This increase primarily reflected net income of $1.2 million and deferred 
compensation plan distributions of $384,000. 
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Three Months Ended September 30, 2009 Compared to September 30, 2008 
 
Results of Operations: 
 
Overview 
 

Our net income decreased to $483,000 or $0.04 per diluted share for the three months ended September 
30, 2009, compared to $925,000, or $0.08 per diluted share for the comparable prior year period. The 
$442,000 decrease in after tax net income reflected a $257,000 decrease in consumer loan fee income, a 
$690,000 decrease in income from credit card and prepaid card products and a $233,000 decrease in loan 
sales. This decline reflected the termination of certain third party lending programs. FBD will close and 
transfer accounts related to our credit card marketer in the fourth quarter of 2009. This will have a material 
adverse impact on earnings. The income declines were partially offset by a $852,000 reduction in non- 
interest expenses. Net interest income also decreased in third quarter 2009 to $2.3 million from $2.5 million 
in the comparable prior year period. These were the primary factors which resulted in a return on average 
assets and average equity of 1.53% and 4.74% respectively, in the third quarter of 2009 compared to 2.97% 
and 9.53% respectively for the same period in 2008. 

 
  
Analysis of Net Interest Income 
 

In addition to significant amounts of consumer loan and credit card fee income, historically, FBD’s 
earnings have depended significantly upon net interest income, which is the difference between interest 
earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income is 
impacted by changes in the mix of the volume and rates of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing 
liabilities. 

 
The following table sets forth an analysis of net interest income by major categories of interest earning 

assets and interest bearing liabilities and the related yields and costs for the three months ended September 
30, 2009 and 2008. 
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Interest-earning assets:
Interest Interest

(Dollars in thousands) Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Federal funds sold
and other interest-
earning assets 25,998$       16$               0.24% 30,233$       147$             1.92%
Securities 14,227         159               4.48% 8,062           120               5.95%
Loans receivable 74,304         2,382            12.72% 75,055         2,483            13.13%
Total interest-earning assets 114,529       2,557            8.86% 113,350       2,750            9.63%

Other assets 10,391         10,152         

Total assets 124,920$     123,502$     

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand-non interest
bearing 22,827$       43,292$       
Demand interest-bearing 597              2$                 1.33% 344              1$                 1.15%
Money market & savings 30,655         93                 1.20% 24,153         129               2.12%
Time deposits 27,043         138               2.02% 12,186         104               3.39%
Total deposits 81,122         233               1.14% 79,975         234               1.16%
Total interest-bearing
deposits 58,295         233               1.59% 36,683         234               2.53%

Other borrowings -                   -                    0.00% -                   -                    -

Total interest-bearing
liabilities 58,295$       233$             1.59% 36,683$       234$             2.53%
Total deposits and 
other borrowings 81,122         233               1.14% 79,975         234               1.16%

Non interest-bearing 
liabilites 3,367           5,035           
Shareholders' equity 40,431         38,492         
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity 124,920$     123,502$     

Net interest income 2,324$          2,516$          
Net interest spread 7.27% 7.09%

Net interest margin 8.05% 8.81%

For the three months ended For the three months ended
September 30, 2008September 30, 2009
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The rate volume table below presents an analysis of the impact on interest income and expense resulting 
from changes in average volumes and rates during the period. Changes due to rate and volume variances have 
been allocated to rate. 
 
Rate/Volume Table 
 

(dollars in thousands)

Volume Rate Total
Interest earned on:

          Federal funds sold (3)$          (128)$      (131)$   
          Securities 69            (30)          39         
          Loans (23)          (78)          (101)     
     Total interest-earning assets 43            (236)        (193)     

Interest expense of
      deposits:
         Interest-bearing demand deposits (1)            -              (1)         
         Money market and savings (20)          56           36         
         Time deposits (76)          42           (34)       
     Total deposit interest expense (97)          98           1           
         Other borrowings -              -              -           
              Total interest expense (97)          98           1           
Net interest income (54)$        (138)$      (192)$   

Three months ended September 30, 2009
versus September 2008

Due to change in:

 
 
 

 
 

The net interest margin decreased 76 basis points to 8.05% for the three months ended September 30, 
2009, versus the prior year comparable period. The decrease reflected a decrease in higher yielding average 
consumer installment loan balances and a reduction in yields on fed funds sold. The average yield on interest-
earning assets also decreased 77 basis points to 8.86% for the three months ended September 30, 2009, from 
9.63% for the prior year comparable period. Excluding higher yielding consumer installment loans in our 
consumer loan segment, net interest margins would have been approximately 4.04% in third quarter 2009 and 
4.70% in third quarter 2008. The resulting 66 basis point decrease reflected the impact of a declining rate 
environment. The average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities decreased 94 basis points to 1.59% for the 
three months ended September 30, 2009, from 2.53% in the prior year comparable period, as FBD did not 
renew higher priced fixed rate time deposits as we anticipated further declines in interest rates. Yields on 
total deposits decreased 2 basis points, to 1.14% in third quarter 2009 from 1.16% in third quarter 2008 
primarily as a result of the declining rate environment, this was partially offset by decreased demand deposits 
from our loan and credit card relationships.  

FBD's net interest income decreased $192,000, or 7.6%, to $2.3 million for the three months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $2.5 million for the prior year comparable period. The decrease resulted primarily 
from lower loan balances and lower rates thereon.  
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Total interest income decreased $193,000, or 7.0%, to $2.6 million for the three months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $2.8 million for the prior year comparable period. Interest and fees on loans 
decreased $101,000, or 4.1% to $2.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2009, from $2.5 
million for the prior year comparable period. The decreases reflected those factors noted in the preceding 
paragraphs which discussed net interest margin and net interest income. Interest and dividends on investment 
securities increased $39,000, or 32.5% to $159,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2009, from 
$120,000 for the prior year comparable period primarily reflecting the purchases of short term securities 
which increased the balances held though carried a lower yield which increased income but lead to a decrease 
in yield on our portfolio of 147 basis points from the prior year comparable period. Excess liquidity was 
generally invested in overnight federal funds sold. The Bank maintains excess liquidity in federal funds sold 
so that it is immediately available in the event of unforeseen liquidity requirements. Federal funds sold income 
decreased $131,000, to $16,000 in third quarter 2009, compared to $147,000 in third quarter 2008. The 
decrease reflected lower average short-term interest rates which decreased the yield to 0.24% from 1.92% 
between those respective periods.  

Total interest expense decreased $1,000 to $233,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2009, 
from $234,000 for the prior year comparable period. That decrease reflected the impact of reduced levels of 
higher cost time deposits and lower short-term interest rates on the cost of interest-bearing liabilities which 
decreased 94 basis points to 1.59% in third quarter 2009 from 2.53% in third quarter 2008. The decrease in 
rates was offset by an increase in interest bearing liabilities. Average total interest-bearing liabilities increased 
$21.6 million, or 58.9%, to $58.3 million in third quarter 2009, from $36.7 million in third quarter 2008.  

Interest expense on time deposits (certificates of deposit) increased $34,000, or 32.7%, to $138,000 for 
third quarter 2009, from $104,000 for the prior year comparable period. This increase reflected higher 
volumes in time deposits due to our retail and brokered CD offerings which were partially offset by reduced 
rates on those offerings. Average certificates of deposit outstanding increased $14.9 million, or 123.1%, to 
$27.0 million, from $12.1 million in the prior year comparable period. The increase was primarily due to our 
issuance of brokered time deposits which averaged $10.0 million during third quarter 2009. While local 
certificates of deposit are readily available, the brokered certificates were obtained at a significantly lower 
cost. Additionally, the lower interest rate environment also contributed to a decrease in average rate on 
certificates of deposit of 138 basis points to 2.02% for the quarter ended September 30, 2009 from 3.4% in 
the prior year comparable period.  

  
Provision for Loan Losses 
 
The provision for loan losses is charged to operations in an amount necessary to bring the total allowance for 
loan losses to a level that management determines is adequate to absorb losses inherent in our loan portfolio. 
The provision for loan losses increased $125,000 to $1.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 
2009, from $1.0 million for the prior year comparable period. Our provision expense was based on loan 
growth, general factors, the considerations of our primary federal regulator, the FDIC, and an increase in 
impaired loans. Management continues to review its loan portfolio to determine the extent, if any, to which 
additional loss provisions may be deemed necessary.  There can be no assurance that the allowance for losses 
will be adequate to cover losses which may in fact be realized in the future and that additional provisions for 
losses will not be required. 
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Non-Interest Income 
 

Total non-interest income decreased $1.2 million to $2.4 million for the three months ended September 
30, 2009, versus $3.6 million for the prior year comparable period. Credit and prepaid card product income 
decreased by $690,000 or 29.4% for the three months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the quarter 
ended September 30, 2008. Revenue on card products is earned primarily on the number of active accounts, 
subject to certain minimum payments from our primary marketer. The decline in revenue reflected the 
termination of certain relationships. The primary marketer for our directly offered credit cards generated $1.4 
million in revenue or 28.1% of total revenue in third quarter 2009. The accounts with this marketer will be 
closed and transferred in the fourth quarter and we will no longer earn revenue on these accounts. Fees on 
consumer installment loans decreased by $257,000 to $525,000 or 32.9% for the three months ended 
September 30, 2009 compared to $782,000 in the prior year comparable period primarily as a result of 
decreases in the volume of such products reflecting terminations of certain relationships.  

 
        
Non-Interest Expense 

Total non-interest expense decreased $852,000, or 23.0% to $2.8 million for the three months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $3.7 million for the prior year comparable period. Salaries and employee benefits 
decreased $162,000 or 8.6% for the three months ended September 30, 2009, from $1.9 million for the prior 
year comparable period. The $162,000 represented reductions in incentive compensation and outsourcing 
expenses. 

Occupancy expense decreased $11,000, or 7.0%, to $147,000 for third quarter 2009, versus $158,000 
for third quarter 2008. The decrease reflected decreases in rent and maintenance expenses between the 
periods. 

 

Depreciation expense decreased $3,000, or 2.9% to $102,000 for the three months ended September 30, 
2009, versus $105,000 for the prior year comparable period.  

Legal fees increased $8,000, or 9.0%, to $97,000 in third quarter 2009, compared to $89,000 in third 
quarter 2008.  

Professional fees decreased $274,000, or 71.4% to $110,000 in third quarter 2009, compared to 
$384,000 in the comparable prior year period. The decrease reflected consulting fees related to credit cards 
incurred in the third quarter of 2008, which did not recur in 2009.  

Data processing expense decreased $13,000, or 10.2%, to $115,000 in third quarter 2009 from $128,000 
in third quarter 2008. The decrease reflected reduced processing charges related to our community banking 
functions.  

Credit card program processing expense decreased to $38,000 in third quarter 2009, compared to 
$136,000 in the comparable prior year period. The decrease reflected the termination of the test of our 
directly offered credit card between the periods. 

The FDIC assessment increased $13,000 or 56.5% to $36,000 in third quarter 2009 from $23,000 in 
2008. The increase in 2009 reflected an increase in our deposit base and assessment increases by the FDIC to 
recapitalize its insurance fund. 

Delaware franchise tax decreased $57,000, or 75.0%, to $19,000 in third quarter 2009 from $76,000 in 
third quarter 2008. The decrease resulted primarily from decreased taxable income. 
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Other expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2009, declined by $255,000 from the prior 
year comparable period. The primary reason for the decrease was a $304,000 fine, related to our consent 
agreement with the FDIC, which was included in expenses for third quarter of 2008. Exclusive of the fine 
expenses were comparable between the three month periods.  

 

 

 
Provision for Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes decreased $720,000, or 49.8% to $727,000 for the three months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $1.4 million for the prior year comparable period. The decrease was primarily the 
result of the decrease in pre-tax income.  The effective tax rate was 34% for the three month period ended 
September 30, 2009 compared to 36% in the prior year comparable period. The reduction reflected a lower 
estimated tax rate and the impact of a fixed amount of tax free income on lower pre-tax income. 
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009 Compared to September 30, 2008 
 
Results of Operations: 
 
Overview 
 

Our net income decreased to $1.2 million or $0.10 per diluted share for the nine months ended September 
30, 2009, compared to $4.6 million, or $0.40 per diluted share for the comparable prior year period primarily 
reflecting lower non-interest income. The $3.4 million decrease in after tax net income reflected a $2.5 
million decrease in consumer loan fee income and a $2.6 million decrease in income from credit card and 
prepaid card products. This decline reflected the termination of certain third party lending programs. FBD 
will close and transfer accounts related to our credit card marketer in fourth quarter 2009. This will have a 
material adverse effect on income. The declines in non interest income were partially offset by reductions in 
non-interest expenses of $2.5 million. Net interest income also decreased in 2009 to $6.6 million from $7.9 
million in the  prior year period as yields on our interest earning assets decreased at greater rate than our cost 
of funds. These were the primary factors which resulted in a return on average assets and average equity of 
1.33% and 3.91% respectively, in the nine months ended 2009 compared to 4.99% and 16.49% respectively 
for the same period in 2008. 
 
 
Analysis of Net Interest Income 
 

In addition to significant amounts of consumer loan and credit card fee income. FBD’s earnings have 
depended significantly upon net interest income, which is the difference between interest earned on 
interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income is impacted by 
changes in the mix of the volume and rates of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. 
 
 
     The following table sets forth an analysis of net interest income by major categories of interest earning 
assets and interest bearing liabilities and the related yields and costs for the nine months ended September 30, 
2009 and 2008. 
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Interest-earning assets:
Interest Interest

(Dollars in thousands) Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Federal funds sold
and other interest-
earning assets 16,715$    31$                      0.25% 20,940$    363$                   2.32%
Securities 18,082      558                      4.11% 13,386      539                     5.37%
Loans receivable 73,771      6,616                   11.99% 77,785      7,913                  13.60%
Total interest-earning assets 108,568    7,205                   8.87% 112,111    8,815                  10.51%

Other assets 10,628      10,192      

Total assets 119,196$  122,303$  

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand-non interest
bearing 27,062$    39,022$    
Demand interest-bearing 513           6$                        1.56% 377           3$                       1.06%
Money market & savings 28,091      274                      1.30% 26,921      500                     2.48%
Time deposits 19,331      361                      2.50% 13,877      456                     4.39%
Total deposits 74,997      641                      1.14% 80,197      959                     1.60%
Total interest-bearing
deposits 47,935      641                      1.79% 41,175      959                     3.11%

Other borrowings 366           2                          0.73% -                -                          -

Total interest-bearing
liabilities 48,301$    643$                    1.78% 41,175$    959$                   3.11%
Total deposits and 
other borrowings 75,363      643                      1.14% 80,197      959                     1.60%

Non interest-bearing 
liabilites 3,394        5,101        
Shareholders' equity 40,439      37,005      
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity 119,196$  122,303$  

Net interest income 6,562$                 7,856$                
Net interest spread 7.09% 7.40%

Net interest margin 8.08% 9.37%

For the nine months ended For the nine months ended
September 30, 2009 September 30, 2008
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The rate volume table below presents an analysis of the impact on interest income and expense resulting 
from changes in average volumes and rates during the period. Changes due to rate and volume variances have 
been allocated to rate. 
 
Rate/Volume Table 
 
 
 
 

(dollars in thousands)

Volume Rate Total
Interest earned on:

          Federal funds sold (8)$           (324)$       (332)$       
          Securities 145           (126)         19             
          Loans (360)         (937)         (1,297)      
     Total interest-earning assets (223)         (1,387)      (1,610)      

Interest expense of
      deposits:
         Interest-bearing demand deposits (2)             (1)             (3)             
         Money market and savings (11)           237           226           
         Time deposits (102)         197           95             
     Total deposit interest expense (115)         433           318           
         Other borrowings (2)             -               (2)             
              Total interest expense (117)         433           316           
Net interest income (340)$       (954)$       (1,294)$    

Nine months ended September 30, 2009
versus September 2008

Due to change in:

 
 

 
Our  net interest margin decreased 129 basis points to 8.08% for the nine months ended September 30, 

2009, versus the prior year comparable period. The majority of the decrease reflected lower mezzanine 
financing balances, lower yields on commercial loans and a decrease in higher yielding average consumer 
installment loan balances. Without the higher yielding consumer loans in our consumer loan segment, net 
interest margins would have been approximately 3.41% for the first nine months of  2009 and 4.19% for the 
comparable prior year period. The resulting 78 basis point decline reflected the impact of a declining rate 
environment and the loss of $2.8 million in high yielding mezzanine finance loans. The average rate paid on 
interest bearing liabilities decreased 133 basis points to 1.78% for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 
from 3.11% in the prior year comparable period, as FBD chose not to renew higher priced fixed rate time 
deposits in anticipation of declines in interest rates. We issued brokered time deposits in the second quarter 
of 2009 totaling $10 million, which, in the current environment, carry a significantly lower cost than in-
market time deposits. Yields on total deposits also decreased 46 basis points, to 1.14% in the nine months 
ended September 30, 2009 from 1.60% in the prior year comparable period primarily as a result of the 
declining rate environment. This was partially offset by lower average deposit balances.  

Our net interest income decreased $1.3 million, or 16.5%, to $6.5 million for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $7.8 million for the prior year comparable period. The decrease resulted primarily 
from lower loan balances and lower rates thereon.  
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Total interest income decreased $1.6 million or 18.3%, to $7.2 million for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $8.8 million for the prior year comparable period. Interest and fees on loans 
decreased $1.3 million, or 16.4%, to $6.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009, from $7.9 
million for the prior year comparable period. The decrease reflected those factors noted in the preceding 
paragraph. Interest and dividends on investment securities increased $19,000, or 3.5%, to $558,000 for the 
nine months ended September 30, 2009, from $539,000 for the prior year comparable period. FBD 
purchased securities between the periods which more than offset maturing issues, but carried a lower yield 
which limited the increase in income. Federal funds sold income decreased $332,000, or 91.5%, to $31,000 
in for the first nine months of 2009, compared to $363,000 in the comparable prior year period. The decrease 
reflected the declining rate environment as yields decreased 207 basis points on fed funds sold to 0.25% from 
2.32% between those respective periods. Average federal funds sold balances decreased as FBD reduced 
balances of higher cost time deposits funding such balances.  Average federal funds sold decreased $4.2 
million, or 20.2%, to $16.7 million from $20.9 million in the comparable prior year period.  

Total interest expense decreased $316,000, or 32.3%, to $643,000 for the nine months ended September 
30, 2009, from $959,000 for the prior year comparable period. That decrease reflected the impact of reduced 
levels of higher cost time deposits and lower short-term interest rates on the yield on interest-bearing 
liabilities. The yield on all interest bearing liabilities decreased 133 basis points to 1.78% in the first nine 
months of 2009 from 3.11% in  the comparable prior year period. Total interest-bearing liabilities increased 
$7.1 million between the periods, due primarily to the offering of brokered time deposits.  

Interest expense on time deposits (certificates of deposit) decreased $95,000, or 20.8%, to $361,000 for 
the first nine months of 2009, from $456,000 for the prior year comparable period. This decrease primarily 
reflected the maturity and non-renewal of higher cost certificates of deposit. Average certificates of deposit 
outstanding increased $5.5 million, or 39.3%, to $19.3 million, for the nine months ended September 30, 
2009, from $13.8 million in the prior year comparable period. The increase reflected an average of $5.1 
million in brokered time deposits which carry a significantly lower cost than our other time deposits. We  
began offering brokered time deposits in second quarter 2009. 

  
Provision for Loan Losses 
 
The provision for loan losses increased $350,000 to $3.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 
2009, from $3.1 million for the prior year comparable period. Our provision expense was based on loan 
growth, general factors, the considerations of our primary federal regulator, the FDIC, and an increase in 
impaired loans. Management continues to review its loan portfolio to determine the extent, if any, to which 
additional loss provisions may be deemed necessary.  There can be no assurance that the allowance for losses 
will be adequate to cover losses which may in fact be realized in the future and that additional provisions for 
losses will not be required. 

  

 
Non-Interest Income 

 
Total non-interest income decreased $6.3 million, or 45.3%, to $7.6 million for the nine months ended 

September 30, 2009, versus $13.9 million for the prior year comparable period. The $6.3 million decrease 
resulted primarily from fee income on credit card products primarily earned on the number of active accounts 
which decreased substantially between the periods. The decline in revenue also reflected the termination of 
certain relationships. Additionally, incentive revenue was earned on the basis of card issuances from 
Mastercard. The Bank recorded incentive income related to issuing cards of $132,000 included in card 
income for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to $1.4 million in the prior year comparable 
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period. The Bank retains some credit card loans on its books, for which the income in the first nine months of 
2009 amounted to $262,000 compared to $1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008. The 
primary marketer for our credit cards generated $4.3 million in revenue or 29.0% of total revenues of $14.8 
million in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The accounts with this marketer will be closed and 
transferred in the fourth quarter and we will no longer earn revenue on these accounts. Consumer installment 
loan fee income decreased $3.1 million to $1.5 million in 2009 from $4.6 million in the first nine months 
ended September  30, 2008 primarily as a result of decreases in the volume of such products reflecting 
terminations of certain relationships.  
 
   
Non-Interest Expenses 

Total non-interest expenses decreased $2.5 million or 21.7% to $9.0 million for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2009, from $11.5 million for the prior year comparable period. Salaries and employee benefits 
decreased $612,000, or 10.0%, to $5.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2009, from $6.1 
million for the prior year comparable period. The decrease primarily reflected reductions in incentive and 
outsourcing expenses. 

Occupancy expense increased $38,000, or 8.6%, to $479,000 for the first nine months of 2009, versus 
$441,000 for the comparable prior year period. The increase reflected increased rent and maintenance 
expenses. 

 
Depreciation expense increased $8,000, or 2.5% to $324,000 for the first nine months of 2009, versus 

$316,000 for the prior year comparable period.  

Legal fees decreased $73,000, or 27.2%, to $195,000 in the first nine months of 2009, compared to 
$268,000 in the comparable prior year period. The majority of the decrease reflected legal fees paid in 2008 
related to new product development which included consumer installment loans, prepaid and credit cards and 
other loan products.  

Professional fees decreased $334,000, or 46.2% to $389,000 in the first nine months of 2009, compared 
to $723,000 in the comparable prior year period. The decrease reflected reduced consulting fees related to 
new product development efforts that were incurred in 2008.  

Data processing expense decreased $22,000, or 5.7%, to $367,000 in the first nine months of 2009 from 
$389,000 in the comparable prior year period. 

Credit card program marketing expense decreased $596,000 in the first nine months of 2009 as we 
terminated our directly offered card test between the periods.  

Credit card program processing expense decreased to $218,000 in the first nine months of 2009, 
compared to $673,000 in the comparable prior year period. The decrease reflected the reduction in  
processing and servicing expenses, which were incurred during 2008 and did not recur in 2009, relating to 
the Bank’s directly offered credit card test, which was terminated in 2008. 

The FDIC assessment increased $70,000, or 134.6% to $122,000 in the first nine months of 2009, 
compared to $52,000 in the comparable prior year period. The increase in 2009 reflected an additional 
assessment by the FDIC to recapitalize its insurance fund. 

Delaware franchise tax decreased $317,000, or 84.8%, to $57,000 in the first nine months of 2009 from 
$374,000 in the comparable prior year period. The decrease resulted primarily from decreased taxable 
income. 
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Other expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2009, decreased $254,000 to $1.3 million in 
year to date 2009 from $1.6 million in the prior year comparable period. The decrease was primarily due to a 
fine of $304,000 assessed in third quarter 2008, otherwise the other expenses were comparable between the 
periods. Other real estate owned expense increased $31,000 and in 2009 there was a $65,000 expense related 
primarily for ACH processing expenses, which were partially offset by declines in other areas.  

 

 
Provision for Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes decreased $2.0 million to $607,000 for the nine months ended September 
30, 2009, from $2.6 million for the prior year comparable period. This decrease was primarily the result of 
the decrease in pre-tax income. The effective tax rate was approximately 34% in 2009 and 35.9% in 2008. 
The reduction reflected a lower estimated tax rate and the impact of a fixed amount of tax free income on 
lower pre-tax income. 

 
 
Commitments, Contingencies and Concentrations 

FBD is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet 
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and 
standby letters of credit totaling $15.6 million at September 30, 2009. These instruments involve to varying 
degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the financial 
statements. 

Credit risk is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss due to the failure of the other parties to a 
financial instrument to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract. The maximum exposure to 
credit loss under commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual 
amount of these instruments. FBD uses the same underwriting standards and policies in making credit 
commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent potential credit risk were comprised of 
commitments to extend credit of approximately $15.4 million and $166.8 million and standby letters of credit 
of approximately $186,000 and $131,000 at September 30, 2009, and December 31, 2008, respectively. The 
$151.4 million decline in commitments was primarily due to credit market effects on our credit card 
marketer. We have closed the commitment lines on these accounts and will transfer these accounts in the 
fourth quarter. The commitments for 2009 and 2008 respectively include $7.9 million and $160.7 million in 
credit card commitments for which the resulting outstanding balances are sold after funding. The Bank has 
the unilateral right to cancel the unused lines, in the unlikely event that the purchaser is unable to fulfill their 
contractual requirement to purchase the receivables, should that become necessary or desirable. The Bank 
has written contingency plans that document the steps required to effectuate the termination of credit card 
lines. Also, the purchasers maintain deposit balances at FBD which provide support for daily card funding. 
FBD closely monitors the liquidity resources of each purchaser. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination 
clauses and many require the payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire 
without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. FBD evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of 
collateral obtained upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. 
Collateral held varies but may include real estate, marketable securities, pledged deposits, equipment and 
accounts receivable. 
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments that guarantee the performance of a customer to a 
third party. The credit risk and collateral policy involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as 
that involved in extending loan commitments. The amount of collateral obtained is based on management’s 
credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may include real estate, marketable securities, 
pledged deposits, equipment and accounts receivable. 
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Regulatory Matters 
The following table presents the FBD’s capital regulatory ratios at September 30, 2009, and December 

31, 2008: 
  

  
 

Actual 

  
For Capital 

Adequacy Purposes 

 To be well 
capitalized under 
regulatory capital 

guidelines 

 

(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio  
       
At September 30, 2009       
       
Total risk based capital ...............................................................  $42,062 45.30% $7,428 8.00% $9,285 10.00% 
       
       
Tier 1 risk based capital ..............................................................  40,867   44.01   3, 714 4.00 5,572 6.00 
       
       
Tier 1 leverage capital .................................................................  40,867  32.78  4,987 4.00 6,234 5.00 
       
At December 31, 2008       
       
Total risk based capital ...............................................................  $40,358 45.07% $7,164 8.00% $8,955 10.00% 
       
       
Tier 1 risk based capital ..............................................................  39,216  43.79  3,582 4.00 5,373 6.00 
       
       
Tier 1 leverage capital .................................................................  39,216  32.21  4,870 4.00 6,088 5.00 
       

In the third quarter of 2009 a special assessment was paid by all insured depository institutions to 
replenish the FDIC Deposit Insurance Fund. We have paid $45,000 to cover that assessment.  

Liquidity 

 Financial institutions must maintain liquidity to meet day-to-day requirements of depositors and 
borrowers, take advantage of market opportunities and provide a cushion against unforeseen needs. Liquidity 
needs can be met by utilizing cash and federal funds sold, converting assets to cash through security 
repurchase or sale various or drawing upon lines of credit cash generated by increasing deposits represents 
the primarily source of liquidity. 

Regulatory authorities require FBD to maintain certain liquidity ratios and to maintain available funds, or 
the capability to obtain available funds at reasonable rates, in order to satisfy commitments to borrowers and 
the demands of depositors.  In response to these requirements, FBD has formed an Asset/Liability Committee 
(“ALCO”), comprised of selected members of the FBD board of directors and senior management, which 
monitor such ratios.  The purpose of the Committees is in part, to monitor FBD’s liquidity and adherence to 
the ratios in addition to managing the relative interest rate risk.  ALCO meets at least quarterly.  

FBD’s most liquid assets, consisting of cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks and 
federal funds sold, totaled $26.0 million at September 30, 2009, compared to $9.5 million at December 31, 
2008, due primarily to a $20.0 million increase in federal funds sold. Loan maturities and repayments, if not 
reinvested in loans, also are immediately available for liquidity. Funding requirements have historically been 
satisfied primarily by generating core deposits and certificates of deposit with competitive rates. At 
September 30, 2009, FBD had aggregate outstanding commitments (including unused lines of credit and 
letters of credit) of $15.6 million. The commitments include $7.9 million in credit card commitments for 
which the resulting balances are sold after funding. Therefore such amounts are not indicative of actual future 
liquidity requirements. The Bank has the unilateral right to cancel the unused lines should that become 
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necessary or desirable, in the unlikely event that the purchaser is unable to fulfill their contractual obligations. 
The Bank has written contingency plans that document the steps required to effectuate the termination of 
credit card lines. Also, the purchasers maintain deposit balances at FBD which provide support for daily card 
funding. We closely monitor the liquidity resources of each purchaser. Certificates of deposit scheduled to 
mature in one year totaled $28.9 million at September 30, 2009. FBD anticipates that it will have sufficient 
funds available to meet its current commitments. 

Target and actual liquidity levels are determined by comparisons of the estimated repayment and 
marketability of interest-earning assets and projected future outflows of deposits and other liabilities. FBD is 
a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and has a credit line exceeding $21 million, all of which 
was available at September 30, 2009. We have also established a line of credit from a correspondent bank, 
Atlantic Central Bankers Bank (“ACBB”), to assist in managing our liquidity position. That line of credit 
totaled $4.0 million and was unused at September 30, 2009. Our securities portfolio also represents a source 
of liquidity for FBD. Accordingly, investment decisions may reflect liquidity over other considerations. 

FBD’s primary short-term funding sources are certificates of deposit and our securities portfolio. The 
circumstances that are reasonably likely to affect those sources are as follows. FBD has historically been able 
to generate certificates of deposit by matching Philadelphia and Delaware market rates or paying a premium 
rate of 25 to 50 basis points over those market rates. Brokered deposits are also available for liquidity and as 
lower cost funding option. The brokered deposits are used modestly, as the Bank primarily uses locally 
obtained deposits for its funding requirements. It is anticipated that these sources of liquidity will continue to 
be available; however, their incremental cost may vary depending on market conditions. The securities 
portfolio is also available for liquidity. Numerous investment companies would likely provide repurchase 
agreements up to the amount of the market value of the securities. 

The ALCO is responsible for managing liquidity and interest sensitivity. Its primary objective is to 
maximize net interest income while configuring the interest-sensitive assets and liabilities to manage interest 
rate risk and provide adequate liquidity. 

 
Investment Securities Portfolio 
  
At September 30, 2009, FBD had identified certain investment securities that are being held for indefinite 

periods of time, including securities that will be used as part of FBD’s asset/liability management strategy and 
that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, prepayments and similar factors.  These securities 
are classified as available for sale and are intended to increase the flexibility of FBD’s asset/liability 
management.  Available for sale securities consisted primarily of US Government Agency securities. The 
book and market values of investment securities available for sale were approximately $12.5 and $12.9 
million as of September 30, 2009.  The net unrealized gain on investment securities available for sale as of 
that date was $391,000. 

 
Loan Portfolio 
 
FBD’s loan portfolio consists of secured and unsecured commercial loans including commercial real 

estate loans, loans secured by one-to-four family residential property, commercial construction and residential 
construction loans as well as residential mortgages, home equity loans, short-term consumer credit card loans 
and other consumer loans. Commercial loans are primarily term loans made to small to medium-sized 
businesses and professionals for working capital, asset acquisition and other purposes. Commercial loans are 
originated as either fixed or variable rate loans with typical terms of 1 to 5 years. FBD’s commercial loans 
typically range between $250,000 and $2,000,000 but customers may borrow significantly larger amounts up 
to the secured legal lending limit of approximately $11.2 million at September 30, 2009. Individual customers 
may have several loans often secured by different collateral. 
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Net loans increased $9.6 million, to $80.9 million at September 30, 2009, from $71.3 million at 
December 31, 2008. The increase was primarily the result of our repurchase of loan participations which 
generated additional interest income.  

The following table sets forth the gross loans by major categories for the periods indicated: 
 
 
(dollars in thousands)

Balance % of Total Balance % of Total
Commercial:
   Real estate secured 58,607$          69.1 50,678$              68.3
Construction and land development 16,994            20.0 12,594                17.0
   Non real estate secured 2,967              3.5 4,614                  6.2
   Unsecured 990                 1.2 990                     1.3

79,558            93.8 68,876                92.8

Subprime credit card receivables 663                 0.8 1,336                  1.8
Subprime consumer installment loans 4,559              5.4 4,004                  5.4
Consumer - other loans 48                   0.1 26                       0.0
Total loans 84,828            100.0% 74,242                100.0%

Less: allowance for loan losses (3,923)             (2,935)                

Net loans 80,905$          71,307$              

As of September 30, 2009 As of December 31, 2008

 
Credit Quality 
 
FBD’s written lending policies require specified underwriting, loan documentation and credit analysis 

standards to be met prior to funding, with independent credit department approval for the majority of new 
loan balances. A committee of the board of directors oversees the loan approval process to monitor that 
proper standards are maintained, while approving the majority of commercial loans. 

Loans, including impaired loans, are generally classified as non-accrual if they are past due as to maturity 
or payment of interest or principal for a period of more than 90 days, unless such loans are well-secured and 
in the process of collection. Loans that are on a current payment status or past due less than 90 days may also 
be classified as non-accrual if repayment in full of principal and/or interest is in doubt. 

Loans may be returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are 
reasonably assured of repayment within an acceptable period of time, and there is a sustained period of 
repayment performance by the borrower, in accordance with the contractual terms. 

While a loan is classified as non-accrual or as an impaired loan and the future collectability of the 
recorded loan balance is doubtful, collections of interest and principal are generally applied as a reduction to 
principal outstanding. When the future collectability of the recorded loan balance is expected, interest income 
may be recognized on a cash basis. In the case where a non-accrual loan had been partially charged off, 
recognition of interest on a cash basis is limited to that which would have been recognized on the recorded 
loan balance at the contractual interest rate. Cash receipts in excess of that amount are recorded as recoveries 
to the allowance for loan losses until prior charge-offs have been fully recovered. 

The following summary shows information concerning loan delinquency and other non-performing assets 
at the dates indicated. 
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 September 30, 
2009 

December 31,          
2008 

(dollars in thousands)   
Loans accruing, but past due 90           
days or more      

           $  
- $         - 

Non-accrual loans   936 2,116 
Total non-performing loans (1) 936 2,116  

Other real estate owned 
 

1,049 
 

293 
         Total non-performing assets (2) $ 1,985 $ 2.409    

 
  Non-performing loans as a     

percentage of total loans net of 
unearned income 

  

    1.10% 2.85% 
Non-performing assets as a 
percentage of total assets 1.51% 2.07% 

 
 

(1)  Non-performing loans are composed of (i) loans that are on a nonaccrual basis; (ii) accruing loans 
that are 90 days or more past due and (iii) restructured loans. 

(2)  Non-performing assets are composed of non-performing loans and other real estate owned (assets 
acquired in foreclosure).  

 
 
Non accrual-loans of $936,000 at September 30, 2009 decreased from $2.1 million at December 31, 

2008, primarily as a result of the transfer of $834,000 of non accrual commercial loans to other real estate 
owned in first quarter 2009 and a $178,000 reduction in consumer installment non accrual loans. The 
$834,000 transfer represented two loans to a single borrower, after a $363,000 charge-off. During the period 
a loan of $252,000 was transferred to non accrual. There were no loans accruing, but past due 90 days or 
more at September 30, 2009. 

  
Problem loans consist of loans that are included in performing loans, but for which potential credit 

problems of the borrowers have caused management to have serious doubts as to the ability of such 
borrowers to continue to comply with present repayment terms. At September 30, 2009, all identified 
problem loans are included in the preceding table or are internally classified with a specific reserve allocation 
in the allowance for loan losses (see “Allowance For Loan Losses”). Management believes that the appraisals 
and other estimates of the value of the collateral pledged against the non-accrual loans generally exceed the 
amount of its outstanding balances.  

 
 The recorded investment in loans which are impaired totaled $2.3 million at September 30, 2009 and 

$2.1 million at December 31, 2008, and the amount of related valuation allowances was $420,000 and $1.0 
million respectively of those dates. There were no commitments to extend credit to any borrowers with 
impaired loans as of the end of the periods presented herein. 

 
At September 30, 2009, and December 31, 2008, internally classified accruing loans totaled 

approximately $2.0 and $0 million respectively. 
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We do not classify our consumer loans and credit cards as substandard; however, they may be classified 

as such for regulatory purposes, due to the weakened credit characteristics of the borrowers. We had 
delinquent loans as follows: (i) 30 to 59 days past due, in the aggregate principal amount of $494,000 at 
September 30, 2009 and $174,000 at December 31, 2008; and (ii) 60 to 89 days past due at September 30, 
2009 and December 31, 2008, in the aggregate principal amount of $67,000 and $269,000, respectively.  

 
Other Real Estate Owned: 
 
There were two properties held in other real estate owned at September 30, 2009 with a value of $1.0 

million. A total of $834,000 secured by land and improvements for new condominium construction was 
transferred to other real estate owned in first quarter 2009. There were two loans totaling $1.2 million 
secured by that property, of which $363,000 was charged off, with the balance of $834,000 transferred to 
other real estate owned. We also recorded proceeds of $79,000 during the third quarter 2009 from sales of 
other real estate owned. 

At September 30, 2009, FBD had no credit exposure to "highly leveraged transactions" as defined by the 
FDIC. 
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Allowance for Loan Losses   
 

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2009, and 2008, 
and the year ended December 31, 2008 is as follows: 

 
    
 For the nine    

months ended 
For the year  
ended 

For the nine  
months ended 

(dollars in thousands) September 30, 
2009 

December 31, 
2008 

September 30, 
2008 

    
Balance at beginning of period………………….. $2,935 $ 2,581 $2,581 
Charge-offs:    
     Commercial and commercial real estate………. 154                         

170                           
307 

     Construction and land development……………. 363 - - 
     Credit cards…………………..…………………. 739 1,450 827 
     Unsecured consumer loans…………………….. 1,540 2,508 1,996 
     Consumer ………………………………..…….                   - 137                    -     

Total charge-offs 2,796 4,265 3,130 
Recoveries:    
      Commercial and commercial real estate….                        -          -                           

38           
      Credit cards………….…..……..………………. 11                               4 3                               
      Unsecured consumer loans…....………………. 327                               392 376                               
      Consumer………………………………....……                            46            38                             

-     
                      Total 
recoveries……………………….. 

384 434 417 

    
Net charge-offs …………………….………………. 2,412 3,831 2,713 
Provision for loan 
losses…………………………….. 

3,400 4,185 3,050 

    
       Balance at end of period……………………….. $3,923 $2,935 $2,918 

    
       Average loans outstanding (1)………………....  $73,771 $77,004 $77,785 

    
 

As a percent of average loans (1): 
   

       Net charge-offs 
(annualized)…………………… 

 

4.36% 4.98% 4.65% 

       Provision for loan losses (annualized)……….… 
 

  6.15% 5.43%   5.22% 

       Allowance for loan losses……………….……... 
 

5.32% 3.81% 3.75% 

Allowance for loan losses to:    
      Total loans, net of unearned income at period 
end 

 

 
4.62% 

 
3.95% 

 
3.92% 

      Total non-performing loans at period end...…… 
 

 
419.12% 

 
138.71% 

 
132.82% 

(1) Includes nonaccruing loans. 
 
Management makes at least a quarterly determination as to an appropriate provision from earnings to 

maintain an allowance for loan losses that management believes is adequate to absorb losses inherent in our 
loan portfolio. The board of directors periodically reviews the status of all non-accrual and impaired loans 
and loans classified by regulators or internal loan review officer, who reviews both the loan portfolio and 
overall adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The board of directors also considers specific loans, pools 
of similar loans, historical charge-off activity, economic conditions and other relevant factors in reviewing the 
adequacy of the loan loss reserve. Any additions deemed necessary to the allowance for loan losses are 
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charged to operating expenses. We have an existing loan review program, which monitors the loan portfolio 
on an ongoing basis. 

 

Estimating the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses at any given date is difficult, particularly 
in a continually changing economy. In our opinion, the allowance for loan losses was adequate to absorb 
losses at September 30, 2009. However, there can be no assurance that additions to the allowance for loan 
losses will not be required. 

In the first quarter of 2009, the bank charged off $363,000 on two loans to one borrower which were 
secured by land and improvements for new condominium construction in Lewes, Delaware. The remainder of 
this loan was transferred to other real estate owned. In the second quarter of 2009, we charged off $154,000 
on a loan secured by an apartment building in New York City. It is not feasible to determine in which loan 
category future charge-offs and recoveries may occur. The entire allowance for loan losses is available to 
absorb loan losses in any loan category. The majority of the loan portfolio represents loans made for 
commercial purposes, while significant amounts of residential property may serve as collateral for such loans. 
FBD attempts to evaluate larger loans individually, on the basis of its loan review process, which scrutinizes 
loans on a selective basis, and other available information. Even if all commercial purpose loans could be 
reviewed, there is no assurance that information on potential problems would be available. The portfolio of 
consumer loans is evaluated in groups.  

 
 

      ITEM 3: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 

      As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information otherwise required by 
this item. 

 
ITEM 4:  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  

   
(a)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.  

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, with the assistance of management, evaluated 
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) as of the end of the period 
covered by this report (the “Evaluation Date”).  Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls and procedures 
were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Act, is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and 
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to 
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosures. 
   
(b)  Changes in internal controls.  
   
As previously reported in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 15, 
2009, Paul Frenkiel resigned his position as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First 
Bank of Delaware on September 14, 2009, and on such date Alonzo J. Primus, the current Chief Executive 
Officer and President of the Bank, was appointed to serve as the acting Chief Financial Officer of First Bank 
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of Delaware". Mr. Primus is now both the Principal Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer of 
FBD.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II:  OTHER INFORMATION 
 

ITEM 1: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  
 

On April 21, 2009, Yulon Clerk (“Plaintiff”) filed a putative class action complaint (“Complaint”) in the 
Pennsylvania Court of Common Pleas for Philadelphia County against the Bank, ACE Cash Express, Inc., 
d/b/a America’s Cash Express (“ACE”), Eastern Specialty Finance, Inc., d/b/a Check ‘n Go (“CNG”), and 
nineteen other defendants.  On May 19, 2009, the Bank and other defendants removed the action to the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.  The matter is captioned as Clerk v. 
Cash America Net of Nevada, LLC, et al., Case No. 2:09-cv-2245-NS. 

In the action, Plaintiff seeks to certify a class of all Pennsylvania residents who obtained and made 
payments on a loan or advance of money on credit in an amount less than $25,000 from the defendants 
during an indeterminate period at an interest rate exceeding nine percent per annum.  According to the 
Complaint, the interest rate for each and all of these loans exceeds the interest rate permitted by Pennsylvania 
law. 

The relief requested by Plaintiff for herself and for the putative class includes: restitution of all excess 
interest and charges collected by defendants; treble damages for interest payments exceeding the statutory 
rate; disgorgement of all revenue, profits, benefits and monies obtained by defendants and interest thereon; 
injunctive relief; and actual and statutory damages, attorneys’ fees and costs. 

On June 8, 2009, the Bank, ACE, and CNG filed motions to compel arbitration and stay litigation.  On July 
8, 2009, the Plaintiff filed oppositions to the motions to compel arbitration.  On July 24, FBD, ACE, and 
CNG filed reply briefs.   

By order dated August 20, 2009, Judge Norma L. Shapiro of the United States District Court for the 
Eastern District of Pennsylvania severed the Plaintiff's claims against the Bank from the claims against the 
other defendants and ordered Plaintiff to file an amended complaint against the Bank alone within 30 days or 
the case against the Bank would be dismissed. 

On September 23, 2009, Plaintiff Yulon Clerk filed a putative class action complaint ("Complaint") against 
First Bank of Delaware (the "Bank") in the Court of Common Pleas for Philadelphia County.  The case was 
captioned as Clerk v. First Bank of Delaware d/b/a Eastern Specialty Finance, Inc., d/b/a Check 'n Go, Case 
No. 090902279.   

On November 6, 2009, the Bank removed the action to the United States District Court for the Eastern 
District of Pennsylvania.  The matter is captioned as Clerk v. First Bank of Delaware d/b/a Eastern Specialty 
Finance, Inc., d/b/a Check 'n Go, Case No. 2:09-cv-5121-JD and is currently assigned to Senior District 
Judge Jan E. Dubois. 

 

At this time, it is too early to determine the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or the ultimate liability, if 
any, resulting from this case.  We expect that our defense costs will be paid by other defendants pursuant to 
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contractual indemnification agreements, and we expect that any liability resulting from this case will be paid 
by the other defendants pursuant to the same indemnification agreements.   

We previously reported on administrative enforcement actions taken by the FDIC and Illinois Department 
of Financial & Professional Regulation, Division of Financial Institutions in our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 2008, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 
31, 2009.  There were no material developments with respect to either of these action during the quarter 
ended September 30, 2009. 

We also previously reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, 
and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, on an action filed by the San 
Francisco City Attorney in the name of the People of the State of California in the Superior Court of the 
State of California, County of San Francisco, against First Bank of Delaware, Monetary Management of 
California, Inc. and Money Mart Express, Inc., and Check ‘N Go of California, Inc. and its affiliated 
companies. On April 2, 2009, the Bank answered the First Amended Complaint denying all of the material 
allegations therein.  Since then, the parties have continued to participate in the discovery process, with the 
Bank and the other defendants responding to discovery requests served by the City Attorney.  It is expected 
that the discovery process will continue at least into 2010. 

From time to time we may be party to other lawsuits that occur in the ordinary course of business.  While 
any litigation involves an element of uncertainty, our management is of the opinion that our liability, if any, 
resulting from any such actions that are currently pending will not have a material effect on our financial 
condition or results of operations. 

 
 

ITEM 6:  EXHIBITS     
   
The following Exhibits are filed as part of this report.  (Exhibit numbers correspond to the exhibits  

required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K)   
 

Exhibit No. 
           

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer  
 
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer  
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SIGNATURES 

 
 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Issuer has duly caused this 

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
       First Bank of Delaware 
       
       
                                                                  
       Alonzo J. Primus 
       President and Chief Executive Officer  

       Acting Chief Financial Officer 
        
Dated: November 13, 2009 
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Exhibit 31.1 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Alonzo J. Primus, certify that: 

 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of First Bank of Delaware (the "company"); 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, 

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, 
and for, the periods presented in this report; 

 
4. The company's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 

controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the company and have: 
 

(a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures 
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared;  

 
(b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 

reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

  
(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

 
(d) disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that 

occurred during the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the company’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal 
control over financial reporting; and 

 
 
5. The company's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 

control over financial reporting, to the company's auditors and the audit committee of the company's board of directors : 
 

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company's ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

 
(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 

significant role in the company's internal control over financial reporting. 
 

 
Date: November 13, 

2009 
  

 Alonzo J. Primus 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Acting Chief Financial Officer  
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Exhibit 32.1 
 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009, as filed with the Federal 

Deposit Insurance Corporation by First Bank of Delaware ("FBD") on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Alonzo J. Primus, Chief 
Executive Officer of FBD, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, that: 

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and result of operations of the FBD. 

 
 
Date: November 13, 2009 By:  
 Alonzo J. Primus 
 President and Chief Executive Officer  

Acting Chief Financial Officer 
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